
 

 
September 11, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, September 11, 2023 at 7:00 PM 
Pre- Meeting at  6:00 PM 

Council Chamber | 1953 Municipal Way  

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

PRAYER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 
Sophie Martin, Rick Ellis, Stacy Rakestraw, Greg Farrell, Jamie Cole, Zach Zahariadis, Kerri Pate 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

A. 08-28-2023 Minutes - Regular City Council Meeting 

B. 09-07-2023 Minutes - Work Session City Council 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

MAYOR BRAKEFIELD COMMENTS/PROCLAMATIONS 

C. Constitution Week Proclamation 2023  

D. Honoring those lost on 911 with a moment of reflection. 

AGENDA ITEMS 

 *  Public Hearing on these Items ** Set Public Hearing on these Items 

1. *Resolution 091123 Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 1046 Independence Ct 

Public hearing to assess the cost of weed abatement to 1046 Independence Ct, Alabaster. 

2. *Resolution 091123-A Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 98 Hickory Street 

Public hearing to assess the cost of weed abatement to 98 Hickory Street, Alabaster. 

3. Resolution 091123-B Adopt FY24 Budget 

Adoption of the Mayor's 2024 fiscal year budget. 

4. Resolution 091123-C Awarding Bid for Waste Water Pumps for the Environmental Services 
Department 

Awarding bid to Hydra Service in the amount of $141,000, for waste water pumps for the 
Environmental Services Department.. 

5. Resolution 091123-D Authorizing Agreement for Soft-Pak Route Management Application 
through Ingram Equipment Company 

Authorizing purchase of software and camera equipment for the Public Works 
Department, from Soft-Pak, through Ingram Equipment Company, for Garbage Route 
Management in the amount of $19,485 up front and $1,230 monthly. 

6. Resolution 091123-E Authorizing Agreement for 3rd Eye Connected Collections Hardware 
and Monitoring through Ingram Equipment Company 

Page 1



 

 
September 11, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 

Authorizing an agreement with 3rd Eye for Garbage Collections Hardware and 
Monitoring, through the Ingram Equipment Company, in the amount of $83,432.87 up 
front and $890 monthly. 

7. Resolution 091123-F  Setting Alabaster City Council Regularly Scheduled Meetings Beginning 
in November 2023 

Amending the Regular City Council Meeting time from 7:00 PM to 6:30 PM, with the pre-
council remaining at 6:00 PM and still meeting on the 2nd and 4th Mondays of each 
month. 

8. *Resolution 091123-G Authorizing Incentive Agreement with PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC - 
Michaels 

Public Hearing - Authorizing the Mayor to sign final agreement with PC Sweet Home 
Bama, LLC., for the Michaels located within the North Promenade Shopping Center. 

9. Resolution 091123-H Rescinding Resolution 071323-A and Authorizing Change Order for 
Resolution 071323 to Include Allowance for Purchase and Installation of Turf 

Rescinding Resolution 071323-A (Agreement with FieldTurf USA, INC) and authorizing a 
change order for Resolution 071323 to include an allowance for the purchase and 
installation of turf for the Veterans Park Improvement Project 2023. 

10. Resolution 091123-I ALDOT Right-of-Way Acquisition Agreement on SR-119 from CR-12 - 
Phase 2 

Authorizing ALDOT's Standard Project Resolution and Plans for the Hwy 119 Widening 
Project - Right-of-Way Acquisition Agreement - STPBH-0119(  )ALABASTER  SR-119 From 
Silver Creek Pkwy to CR-12 Phase 2. 

11. Resolution 091123-J ALDOT Utility and Construction Agreement for SR-119 from CR-12 - 
Phase 2 

Authorizing ALDOT's Standard Project Resolution and Plans for the Hwy 119 Widening 
Project - Utility and Construction Agreement - STPBH-0119(  ) ALABASTER  SR-119 From 
Silver Creek Pkwy to CR-12 Phase 2. 

12. **Resolution 102323 Affirming Recommendation of Fire Marshal to Abate Weeds at One 
Property 

Setting a public hearing for Monday, October 23, 2023, affirming the recommendation of 
the Fire Marshal to abate weeds at 220 Jasmine Drive, Alabaster, AL. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Please step to the podium and state your name and address for the record. 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

WORK SESSION SCHEDULED FOR SEPTEMBER 21, 2023. 

ADJOURN MEETING 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for Council meetings should 
notify the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting by: 

Calling Office Number: 205-664-6800  
Or Visit: http://cityofalabaster.com/397/Americans-with-Disabilities-Act 

 

Page 2

http://cityofalabaster.com/397/Americans-with-Disabilities-Act


Book 76, Pg. -12- 

 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 8/28/2023 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 Council Chamber | 1953 Municipal Way 
 Alabaster, AL 

 
August 28, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 6:02 PM and the Council organized for the Regular City Council 
Meeting which started at 7:00 PM with Council President Sophie Martin presiding. 

PRAYER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 
Sophie Martin, Rick Ellis, Stacy Rakestraw, Greg Farrell, Jamie Cole, Zach Zahariadis, Kerri Pate 

PRESENT 
Council Member - Ward 1 Sophie Martin 
Council Member - Ward 2 Rick Ellis 
Council Member - Ward 3 Stacy Rakestraw 
Council Member - Ward 5 Jamie Cole 
 
ABSENT 
Council Member - Ward 4 Greg Farrell 
Council Member - Ward 6 Zach Zahariadis 
Council Member - Ward 7 Kerri Pate 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 3 Rakestraw, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 2 
Ellis. Minutes approved. 

A. 08-14-2023 Minutes - Regular City Council Meeting 

B. 08-24-2023 Minutes - Work Session City Council 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 5 Cole, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 3 
Rakestraw. Agenda approved. 

MAYOR BRAKEFIELD COMMENTS/PROCLAMATIONS 

C. Gynecological Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation 

Mayor Brakefield proclaimed September as Gynecologic Cancer Awareness Month and 
he presented the proclamation to Jatonia Dial with the Laura Crandall Brown Foundation. 

COUNCIL REPORTS 

D. Library Monthly Report - July 2023 - Council Member Rick Ellis 

E. Public Works Monthly Report - July 2023 - Council Member Stacy Rakestraw 

F. AFD Monthly Report - July 2023 - Council Member Jamie Cole 

G. APD Monthly Report - July 2023 - Council Member Jamie Cole 

H. Engineering and Building Monthly Report - July 2023 - Council Member Stacy Rakestraw 

Page 3

Item #A.



Book 76, Pg. -13- 

 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 8/28/2023 

AGENDA ITEMS 

 *  Public Hearing on these Items ** Set Public Hearing on these Items 

1. Resolution 082823 Authorizing APPLE Agreement through RPCGB for Buck Creek Trail 
Extension Study 

Authorizing a Buck Creek Trail Extension APPLE Study Agreement between City of 
Alabaster and the Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham in the amount 
not to exceed $12,000. 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 2 Ellis, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 5 
Cole. Voting Yea: Council Member - Ward 1 Martin, Council Member - Ward 2 Ellis, Council 
Member - Ward 3 Rakestraw, Council Member - Ward 5 Cole. Motion carried. 

2. Resolution 082823-A Authorizing Agreement with Osprey Initiative for Litter Gitter Device 
and Management 

Authorizing a one year agreement with Osprey Initiative (Osprey) to provide, operate, and 
maintain one (1) Litter Gitter and one (1) Litter Boom in the Cahaba River watershed on 
Buck Creek in the amount of $24,000. 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 3 Rakestraw, Seconded by Council Member - 
Ward 2 Ellis. Voting Yea: Council Member - Ward 1 Martin, Council Member - Ward 2 Ellis, 
Council Member - Ward 3 Rakestraw, Council Member - Ward 5 Cole. Motion carried. 

3. Resolution 082823-B Authorizing a Professional Services Agreement with Poole and Co 
Architects - WWTP Renovation 

Authorizing a Professional Services Contract with Poole and Co Architects in the amount 
of $267,300 for the Schematic Design and Construction Administration for renovations 
and additions to the WWTP Admin office. 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 2 Ellis, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 5 
Cole. Voting Yea: Council Member - Ward 1 Martin, Council Member - Ward 2 Ellis, Council 
Member - Ward 3 Rakestraw, Council Member - Ward 5 Cole. Motion carried. 

4. Resolution 082823-C Authorizing Contract with Rivertree Systems 

Authorizing an Agreement renewal with Rivertree Systems Inc., for examination services. 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 5 Cole, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 3 
Rakestraw. Motion carried. 

5. Resolution 082823-D Approving Issuance of ABC License - AG Taco Co LLC 

Approving a transfer request for a 020 Restaurant Retail Liquor License for AG Taco Co 
LLC., previously Joes Italian, located at 21 Weatherly Club Drive Alabaster, AL 35007. 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 5 Cole, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 3 
Rakestraw. Motion carried. 

6. **Resolution 091123 Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 1046 Independence Ct 

Setting a public hearing for Monday, September 11. 2023 at 7:00 PM, to assess the cost 
of weed abatement to 1046 Independence Ct, Alabaster. 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 3 Rakestraw, Seconded by Council Member – 
Ellis. Motion carried. 

7. **Resolution 091123-A Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 98 Hickory Street 

Setting a public hearing for Monday, September 11. 2023 at 7:00 PM, to assess the cost 
of weed abatement to 98 Hickory Street, Alabaster. 

Page 4

Item #A.



Book 76, Pg. -14- 

 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 8/28/2023 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 2 Ellis, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 5 
Cole. Motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

None 

WORK SESSION SCHEDULED FOR SEPTEMBER 7, 2023, AT 6:00 PM 

ADJOURN MEETING 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 3 Rakestraw, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 5 Cole. 
Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:14 PM. 

 

 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk    Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 

 

Page 5

Item #A.



 
Work Session City Council Minutes 9/7/2023 

 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION CITY COUNCIL 

 Council Chambers | 1953 Municipal Way 
 Alabaster, AL 

 
September 07, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER 

City Council assembled for a Work Session and the meeting was called to order at 6:01 PM with 
Council President Sophie Martin presiding. 

ROLL CALL 
Sophie Martin, Rick Ellis, Stacy Rakestraw, Greg Farrell, Jamie Cole, Zach Zahariadis, Kerri Pate 

PRESENT 
Council Member - Ward 1 Sophie Martin 
Council Member - Ward 2 Rick Ellis 
Council Member - Ward 3 Stacy Rakestraw 
Council Member - Ward 4 Greg Farrell 
Council Member - Ward 5 Jamie Cole 
Council Member - Ward 6 Zach Zahariadis 
Council Member - Ward 7 Kerri Pate 

AGENDA ITEMS:  

1. Department Head Presentations 

Brian Binzer - Administration 
Patrick Johnson - IT 
Fred Hawkins - Building & Engineering Services 
                       - Environmental Services 
                       - Facilities 
                       - Public Works 

2. FY 2024 Budget Presentation 

Second presentation to City Council of the Mayor's proposed fiscal year 2024 budget. 
Added to Monday’s agenda. 

3. SoftPak Route Management Application and 3rd Eye Camera System 

Review request to purchase software and camera equipment for the Public Works 
Department. Added to Monday's agenda. 

4. Review Bids Received for Wastewater Pumps 

Consider bid received for waste water pumps for the Environmental Services 
Department. Added to Monday's agenda. 

5. Regular City Council Meeting Time - Discussion 

Currently Regular City Council Meeting times are 6:00 PM for Pre-Council and 7:00 PM 
for the Regular Meeting. Consideration - amending the meeting time to 6:30 PM. This 
change will take place in November 2023. Added to Monday's agenda.  

6. Development Agreement for North Promenade/Michaels 

Review final agreement for the Michaels located within the North Promenade Shopping 
Center. Added to Monday's agenda. 

Page 6

Item #B.



 
Work Session City Council Minutes 9/7/2023 

7. Council Appointments Needed 

Council discussed needed appointments to fill unexpired terms for IDB, CDA and PBA. 

8. Recommendation of Fire Marshal to Abate Weeds at Two Properties 

REVIEW FOR MONDAY: Setting a public hearing for Monday, October 23, 2023, affirming 
the recommendation of the Fire Marshal to abate weeds at 205 Meadowlark Drive and 
220 Jasmine Drive, Alabaster, AL. (**Resolution 102323 Affirming Recommendation of 
Fire Marshal to Abate Weeds at Two Properties) Added to Monday's agenda. 

9. *Resolution 091123 Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 1046 Independence Ct 

A public hearing is set for September 11, 2023, at 7:00 PM, to assess the cost of weed 
abatement to 1046 Independence Ct, Alabaster. Added to Monday's agenda. 

10. **Resolution 091123-A Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 98 Hickory Street 

Setting a public hearing for Monday, September 11, 2023, at 7:00 PM, to assess the cost 
of weed abatement to 98 Hickory Street, Alabaster. Added to Monday's agenda. 

11. Executive Session Relating to Preliminary Negotiations Involving Matters of Trade or 
Commerce 

Alabama Code Title § 36-25A-7 (7) To discuss preliminary negotiations involving matters 
of trade or commerce in which the governmental body is in competition with private 
individuals or entities or other governmental bodies in Alabama or in other states or 
foreign nations or to discuss matters or information of the character defined or 
described in the Alabama Trade Secrets Act.  Provided, however, that prior to such 
discussions a person involved in the recruitment or retention effort or who has personal 
knowledge that the discussion will involve matter or information of the character 
defined or described in the Alabama Trade Secrets Act advises the governmental body in 
writing or by oral declaration entered into the minutes that the discussions would have 
a detrimental effect upon the competitive position of a party to the negotiations or 
upon the location, retention, expansion, or upgrading of a public employee or business 
entity in the area served by the governmental body if disclosed outside of an executive 
session, or would disclose information protected by the Alabama Trade Secrets Act. 

City Attorney, Jeff Brumlow confirmed that the reason for Executive Session was 
authorized under State Law. Council President Sophie Martin stated that the Council 
would not reconvene following the Executive Session. 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 5 Cole, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 3 
Rakestraw. Voting Yea: Council Member - Ward 1 Martin, Council Member - Ward 2 
Ellis, Council Member - Ward 3 Rakestraw, Council Member - Ward 4 Farrell, Council 
Member - Ward 5 Cole, Council Member - Ward 6 Zahariadis, Council Member - Ward 7 
Pate. Motion carried. Council entered executive session at 8:26 PM 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion made by Council Member - Ward 7 Pate, Seconded by Council Member - Ward 2 Ellis. 
Motion carried. Executive Session ended and the Council Meeting was adjourned at 9:05 PM. 
 

 

________________________________   ___________________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk     Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 

Page 7

Item #B.



Page 8

Item #C.



Having been previously introduced during the August 28, 2023, Council Meeting, Council 
Member _________________________ introduced the following Resolution, which was 
seconded by Council Member _________________. 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 091123 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PLACEMENT OF LIEN  
ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1046 INDEPENDENCE CT 

 
WHEREAS, on Monday July 25, 2023, the Council, upon recommendation of the Fire 
Marshal and Code Enforcement, declared 1046 INDEPENDENCE CT., PIN # 
138274002058.000, in the City of Alabaster, Alabama, Owner David Stroud, to be a 
public nuisance; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Fire Marshal and Code Enforcement has made a report to the Council of 
the cost of abatement on said property in the total amount of $275.00 for the abatement 
of weeds; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration advised the Council that an additional cost of $376.79 for 
advertising, legal fees, recording fees and postage are associated with this abatement; 
and, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, AFTER DUE CONSIDERATION, BE IT RESOLVED, 
 

1. That costs in the amount of $651.79 are hereby assessed against 1046 
INDEPENDENCE CT., PIN # 138274002058.000, in the City of Alabaster, 
Alabama. 

2. That the Clerk is to hereby publish a copy of this resolution in the manner 
prescribed. 

3. That the Clerk is hereby directed to mail a certified copy of this resolution by 
certified or registered mail to the person last assessed for ad valorem taxes on 
the property. 

4. That the Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this resolution in the 
Probate Court of Shelby County, Alabama. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2023. 
 
ATTEST:           CITY OF ALABASTER, ALABAMA 
 
 
____________________________       ________________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk        Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor 

Page 9

Item #1.



Having been previously introduced during the August 28, 2023, Council Meeting, Council 
Member _________________________ introduced the following Resolution, which was 
seconded by Council Member _________________. 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 091123-A 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PLACEMENT OF LIEN  
ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 98 HICKORY STREET 

 
WHEREAS, on Monday July 25, 2023, the Council, upon recommendation of the Fire 
Marshal and Code Enforcement, declared 98 HICKORY STREET., PIN # 23 2 04 0 001 
077.001, in the City of Alabaster, Alabama, Owner Lopez Juan De Dios Chavez, to be a 
public nuisance; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Fire Marshal and Code Enforcement has made a report to the Council of 
the cost of abatement on said property in the total amount of $1,200.00 for the 
abatement of weeds; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration advised the Council that an additional cost of $376.79 for 
advertising, legal fees, recording fees and postage are associated with this abatement; 
and, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, AFTER DUE CONSIDERATION, BE IT RESOLVED, 
 

1. That costs in the amount of $1,576.79 are hereby assessed against 98 
HICKORY STREET., PIN # 23 2 04 0 001 077.001 in the City of Alabaster, 
Alabama. 

2. That the Clerk is to hereby publish a copy of this resolution in the manner 
prescribed. 

3. That the Clerk is hereby directed to mail a certified copy of this resolution by 
certified or registered mail to the person last assessed for ad valorem taxes on 
the property. 

4. That the Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this resolution in the 
Probate Court of Shelby County, Alabama. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2023. 
 
ATTEST:           CITY OF ALABASTER, ALABAMA 
 
 
____________________________       ________________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk        Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor 

Page 10

Item #2.



98 Hickory Street 08-28-2023 
 

Page 11

Item #2.



98 Hickory Street 08-28-2023 
 

 

Page 12

Item #2.



  

 
Fire Department 

Public Safety Division 

Smoke Alarms Save Lives! 
1953 Municipal Way, Suite 102  •   Alabaster  •  Alabama 35007 

Phone 205-664-6823  •  Fax 205-664-6841  •  tlamb@alabasterfire.org 

Timothy J. Love 
Fire Chief 

 

Thomas J. Lamb 
Fire Marshal 

 

Scott Brakefield 
Mayor 

 

Brian Binzer 
City Administrator 

 

Report of Abatement Cost 
 

 

To:  Honorable Sophie Martin, City Council President, Alabaster City Council Pursuant to Ordinance No: 20-100 

of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Alabaster, Alabama, Code Enforcement of the City of Alabaster, 

Alabama contracted with Steven’s Wack n Sack as ordered in Resolution 072423 on July 24th, 2023 and is 

hereby providing an itemized report of the cost of removal of the nuisance located at 98 Hickory Street / PIN 

23 2 04 0 001 077.001 owned by Lopez Juan De Dios Chavez: 

 

1. The weeds were abated on August 14th 2023. 

2. The costs expended by the City of Alabaster were as follows: 

Abatement Cost $ 1200.00 

Legal Fees  $   250.00 

Legal Notice  $   118.69 

Postage   $      8.10 

 

TOTAL   $ 1576.79 

3. We have found the costs reasonable under the circumstances and hereby recommend that these 

costs be attached as an Assessment and lien to the Property and collected pursuant to the fullest 

extent of the law. 
 

 

Done this the 15th  day of August, 2023. 

 
___________________________________________________ 

Thomas J. Lamb, Fire Marshal 

 

 

ATTEST: ___________________________________________________ 

J. Mark Frey, City Clerk 

Page 13

Item #2.



  

 
Fire Department 

Public Safety Division 

Smoke Alarms Save Lives! 
1953 Municipal Way, Suite 102  •   Alabaster  •  Alabama 35007 

Phone 205-664-6823  •  Fax 205-664-6841  •  tlamb@alabasterfire.org 

Timothy J. Love 
Fire Chief 

 

Thomas J. Lamb 
Fire Marshal 

 

Scott Brakefield 
Mayor 

 

Brian Binzer 
City Administrator 

           

Page 14

Item #2.



 

STAFF REPORT  

City of Alabaster 

1953 Municipal Way 

Alabaster, AL  35007 

 

Submitted By: Thomas Lamb  

Council Meeting Date: 8/24/2023  

Agenda Item Description: Abatement Cost Report   

Agenda Item Requestor: Thomas Lamb  

Summary/Background: Cost report for: 

98 Hickory Street 

1046 Independence Court 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Impact: 

(Memo from Finance Dir.) 

 

 

 

Recommended  
Council Actions: 

 

Attachments:  

Next Steps/Schedule:  

Page 15

Item #2.



 

Page 16

Item #2.



Council Member ____________________introduced the following Resolution, which 
was seconded by Council Member __________________. 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 091123-B 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF ALABASTER  
FISCAL YEAR 2024 BUDGET 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor has presented the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 to the City 
Council of the City of Alabaster, Alabama; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held various budget work sessions with careful consideration 
on FY24 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Alabama Code Section 11-43-57 requires that the City Council appropriate 
funds for the various departments for use in the upcoming fiscal year. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:  
 
 1.  That all purchases of the City shall be properly charged to the department and 
 line item authorizing same and the Treasurer and Mayor are authorized to draw 
 and pay such items so properly charged. 
 
 2.  That the City Council of the City of Alabaster, does hereby adopt the Fiscal 
 Year 2024 Budget (see attachment) as proposed by Scott Brakefield, Mayor of 
 the City of Alabaster.   

 
      Y / N         Y / N  

Sophie Martin  ______   Jamie Cole  ______  
Rick Ellis  ______   Zach Zahariadis ______ 
Stacy Rakestraw ______   Kerri Pate  ______ 
Greg Farrell  ______ 

 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
 
____________________________  _______________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk    Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

Item #3.



Resolution 091123-B Exhibit A 
 

 

                       

Page 18

Item #3.



 

 
 

 

 
 

Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Highlights 

 3% cost-of-living adjustment for all employees effective on the first day of the budget 
year. 

 City paid portion of employee health insurance increased from 80% to 90% of total cost. 

 $650k to provide enhanced ambulance transportation. 

 3 new full-time police officer positions added.  

 $600k to install traffic signals at the entrances to Veterans Park & Patriots Park. 

 $6.0M to construct a new amphitheater at the City Hall greenspace. 

 $1.0M to expand the Senior Center. 

 $3.0M to complete Veterans Park improvements (turfing baseball fields, pickleball 
courts, new playground equipment). 

 $4.5M to complete renovation of Jim “Peanut” Davenport baseball field.  

 $1.0M to complete renovations of Larry Simmons field.  

 $1.6M to complete trail project between Thompson High School and Thompson Middle 
School. 

 $672k for a new pumper truck for the Fire Department. 

 $100k to replace the playground equipment at Warrior Park. 

 $760k for 10 new patrol vehicles for the Police Department.  

 $8.0M of capital improvements to the sewer system.  

 $1.0M for garbage vehicle replacements.  

 $120k of funding for the Alabaster Arts Council. 

 $7.24M of sales tax remitted to Alabaster City Schools. 
 

 

Page 19

Item #3.



Council Member _____________________ introduced the following Resolution, which 
was seconded by Council Member _____________________. 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 091123-C 
 

AWARDING THE BID FOR WASTE WATER PUMPS TO HYDRA SERVICE 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to provide adequate and efficient 
equipment for our Environmental Services Department to enable them to serve our 
citizens, and;  
 

WHEREAS, these pumps are needed to maintain service within our collection 
system, and; 
 

WHEREAS, a bid opening was held on September 6, 2023, at 10:00 am and the 
following bid was received: 

 

 Hydra Service     $141,000 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1) Upon the recommendation of city staff, the City Council awards the bid to Hydra 

Service and authorizes the purchase of thirteen (13) wastewater pumps at a cost not 
to exceed $141,000. 
 

2) That the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and attest any related, and 
necessary documents on behalf of the City for said purchase.  

 
      Y / N         Y / N  

Sophie Martin  ______   Jamie Cole  ______  
Rick Ellis  ______   Zach Zahariadis ______ 
Stacy Rakestraw ______   Kerri Pate  ______ 
Greg Farrell  ______ 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk   Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor  

Page 20

Item #4.



 

STAFF REPORT  

City of Alabaster 

1953 Municipal Way 

Alabaster, AL  35007 

 

Submitted By: Fred Hawkins 

Council Meeting Date: 09-07-2023  

Agenda Item Description: Recommendation Pump Bid   

Agenda Item Requestor:  

Summary/Background:  

 

See attached pump bid.  13 pumps.  $141,100.  Hydra 

Service was the only bidder.  The prices are good in my 

opinion.  I would like to recommend we award this bid 

and move forward with the purchase.   

 

 

 

 

Financial Impact: 

(Memo from Finance Dir.) 

 

 

 

Recommended  
Council Actions: 

 

Attachments:  

Next Steps/Schedule:  

 
Page 21

Item #4.



Page 22

Item #4.



Page 23

Item #4.



Page 24

Item #4.



Page 25

Item #4.



Page 26

Item #4.



Page 27

Item #4.



Page 28

Item #4.



Page 29

Item #4.



Page 30

Item #4.



Page 31

Item #4.



Page 32

Item #4.



Page 33

Item #4.



Page 34

Item #4.



Page 35

Item #4.



Page 36

Item #4.



Page 37

Item #4.



Page 38

Item #4.



Page 39

Item #4.



Page 40

Item #4.



Page 41

Item #4.



Page 42

Item #4.



Page 43

Item #4.



Page 44

Item #4.



Page 45

Item #4.



Council Member _____________________ introduced the following Resolution, which 
was seconded by Council Member _____________________. 

 
RESOLUTION 091123-D 

 
AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH SOFT-PAK SOFTWARE SOLUTIONS THROUGH 

INGRAM EQUIPMENT COMPANY 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to provide adequate and efficient equipment 
for our Public Works Department to enable them to serve our citizens, and;  
 

WHEREAS, new garbage truck monitoring technology can improve efficiencies and 
enhance safety for employees and citizens, and; 

 
WHEREAS, said agreement will include the following: 

 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, AS FOLLOWS: 
1) The City Council authorizes an agreement with Soft-Pak, through Ingram Equipment 

Company, for Garbage Truck Route Management for the Public Works Department, at a cost 
not to exceed $19,485 up front and $1,230 monthly. 
 

2) That the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and attest any related, and necessary 
documents on behalf of the City for said purchase.  

 
      Y / N         Y / N  

Sophie Martin  ______   Jamie Cole  ______  
Rick Ellis  ______   Zach Zahariadis ______ 
Stacy Rakestraw ______   Kerri Pate  ______ 
Greg Farrell  ______ 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk   Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
APPROVED: 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor  

Page 46

Item #5.



Quote Date:

By: CHRIS
Quote #

1-888-763-8725 ext: 513

Soft-Pak Fee Schedule
Item Description Unit Price Qty Unit One Time Cost Monthly Usage

Soft-Pak Database License 4,500.00 1 ea. 4,500.00
Soft-Pak software includes: Customer Management, Billing, A/R, 
eMail PDF Billing, Collections, Reporting, Operations, Productivity, 
Recurring Credit Card processing (requires fusebox ), Recurring 
eCheck (requires Forte )
Soft-Pak User License 650.00 3 ea. 1,950.00 270.00

Optional Soft-Pak Modules and Interfaces
Item Description Unit Price Qty Unit One Time Cost Monthly Usage

Map Pak (Scheduled routes, Work Orders & Mobile-Pak 
events/GPS in Google Maps)

500.00 1 ea. 500.00 60.00

Mobile Pak price per unit (paperless routing, real time data 
exhange between vehicle and office.  Customer responsible for 
all hardware and data plan)  ($75/month/tablet)(Turn-by-
Turn:$10/month/tablet additional)

500.00 12 ea. 6,000.00 900.00

Total Software Fees One Time Monthly
Total Soft-Pak Software Licenses: 12,950.00$              1,230.00$               

Total Due (50% of Software license fees)  to Schedule Installation: 6,475.00$                
Remainder of Soft-Pak Software Fees, plus Monthly Usage due starting at customers 'go-live' 

Item Description Unit Price Qty Unit Extended Price
Remote Pre Implementation Work /hour (est. 2-4 hrs) 150.00 2.0 Hrs 300.00
Remote Training - Sys Admin, Users, Go Live (est. 25-35 hrs) 150.00 25.0 Hrs 3,750.00
Custom Programming for billing format changes 185.00 0.0 Hrs 0.00
Data Conversion from Quicksbooks/excel (10-25 hrs) 185.00 10.0 Hrs 1,850.00
E-Mail billing Setup (est 3-5 hrs/form, if not using standard) 185.00 0.0 Hrs 0.00
E-Pak Database configuration and user set up 150.00 1.0 Hrs 150.00
Mobile-Pak Setup and Configuration (estimate 1-3 hrs) 185.00 1.0 Hrs 185.00
Printer set up and configuration after initial set up is complete 150.00 0.0 Hrs 0.00
Follow Up/Process Review (2-6 hrs, if needed) 150.00 2.0 Hrs 300.00

Total Technical Services & Training Estimates* One Time
Estimated Total: 6,535.00
*billed as services are performed/completed

Print Name Title

Customer Signature Date

Customer Signature, Acknowledgment of Payment Terms
Customer understand and agrees to the payment terms listed above. The initial payment is due prior to  scheduling service, providing installation 
or training, or providing access to the application server. The customer acknowledges the terms and conditions as listed in the Application 
Service Provider Agreement. Technical services and on-site training "service fees" are billed as services are performed (invoices are sent weekly 
and due upon receipt). Cancellation of onsite or remote training requires 24hrs advanced written notification prior to services being performed. 
Any training that is not cancelled within 24hours will be billed at the standard rate of $150/ hour (with no execption). Note that all travel related 
expenses are billed "per diem" and invoiced weekly in conjunction with the technical services and training performed. The "go live date" is 
described as the day the customer is allowed access to the application server. The remaining software balance is due once the "go live date" is 
complete. Annual support will be invoiced at the "go live date".  A commitment to the "go live" date is agreed to between customer and vendor 
with no rescheduling, cancellation or postponement offered except in extenuating circumstances. Annual Support fees or Monthly Support fees 
are billed based on the mutually agreed to go live date. Post go live training is expected to end 2 months (60 days) after the "go live" date. A 
customer can request additional training from the training or support departments and is billable at the standard training rate of $150/hour.

900 MAINTENANCE DR, ALABASTER, AL 35007 

Soft-Pak Cloud Software Licenses 3 Year Agreement

Technical Services & Training Estimates

May 4, 2023
For: CITY OF ALABASTER, AL

229502/4375

Soft-Pak Software Solutions Price Proposal for
CITY OF ALABASTER, AL

e-Pak Hybrid Use or disclosure of data contained on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this document. Page A-1
Page 47

Item #5.



 8525 Gibbs Drive, Suite 300 
San Diego, CA 92123 
Phone: 619-283-2338 

Fax: 619-283-6641 
 
 
 
 

 

                 Soft-Pak Application Services Provider Agreement    
                       6/01/2020 

APPLICATION SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT 
This Application Service Provider Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into between Soft-Pak, Inc., a California corporation (“Vendor”), and ______    
_City of Alabaster, AL ___ of __Alabaster, AL____  (“Customer”), with reference to the following: 
 
1. Services 

(a) Effective Date:  The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date on which 
this Agreement first becomes fully executed by all Parties hereto. 

(b) System Access.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, during the 
Term (as listed on the Price Proposal), Customer may use the Soft-Pak software 
application (“System”) over the internet solely to support the Customer’s normal 
course of business. The terms of the Price Proposal are incorporated by reference. 

(c) Restrictions on Use.  Customer shall not, directly or indirectly, (i) license, sell, 
lease or otherwise transfer the System to any third party, (ii) alter or permit a third 
party to alter any part of the System; (iii) allow access to or share non-public 
System features or content with any third party; or (iv) access the System in order 
to build a competitive product or service, to build a product using similar ideas, 
features, functions or graphics of the System, or to copy any ideas, features, 
functions or graphics of the System. 

(d) Data Storage.  All user licenses, modules and interface additions listed in the 
Price Proposal are based on concurrent usage; except Scale-Pak which must be 
identified by each scale location and company.   

(e) Use of Data.  Customer agrees that it is solely responsible for collecting, inputting 
and updating all data related to their use of the System.  

(f) Passwords.  Customer is responsible for all use of its account numbers and 
passwords, and for maintaining the confidentiality of all passwords and 
information. Customer shall not allow its users to share log-in credentials or 
provide System passwords or other log-in information to any third party.  

2. Fee and Payment Terms 
(a) Fees. All payments are due in United States Dollars. Customer acknowledges and 

agrees to pay Vendor based on the terms listed on the Price Proposal. All 
nonrecurring charges (“Service Fees”) will be invoiced and paid upon receipt. 
Support services begin once the Customer is granted access to the application 
server (the “Go Live” date).  

(b) Payment Schedule. On the Effective Date, Customer shall pay Vendor the amount 
equal to the initial deposit on the Price Proposal. No installation or conversion 
services will be scheduled by Vendor until the initial deposit is paid in full. The 
remaining balance is due pursuant to the terms of the Price Proposal. The Go Live 
date is the first date on which Customer is granted System access. Customers 
paying a monthly subscription fee will be provided a statement on the first of 
each month and shall pay in accordance with the statement. Vendor reserves the 
right to invoice on a prorated basis for any part of a calendar month to allow for 
subsequent statements to be calculated and paid on a calendar or monthly basis.  

(c) Late Charges. Any payment not received within thirty (30) days of the invoice 
date will be assessed a penalty fee at a rate of ten percent (10%) per month or the 
highest rate permissible under applicable law. If Customer is delinquent in its 
payments, Vendor may, upon prior written notice (either paper or email) to 
Customer, and at Vendor’s sole discretion (i) terminate this agreement; (ii) in 
whole or in part suspend System access to Customer until payments and penalties 
are paid in full; (iii) in whole or in part suspend System access to Customer until 
Vendor and Customer have agreed, in writing, to modified payment terms that 
include a payment schedule for all delinquent amounts, and/or (iv) require other 
assurances to secure Customer’s payment obligations hereunder (such as setting 
up recurring payments on the first of each month, etc.). 

(d) Adjustment of ongoing fees: Vendor reserves the right to adjust the annual or 
monthly fee for Customer by providing written notice to Customer no later than 
thirty (30) days prior to the end of the current annual or monthly term.  

(e) Taxes.  Customer will be responsible for all applicable taxes and fees. 
3. Warranty  

(a) Vendor warrants that it will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide 
System access to Customer. Vendor does not warrant that the System shall be 
provided uninterrupted or without error; provided that: 

(i)  Customer has not used the System in combination with hardware (i.e., 
printers) or software not provided by Vendor; and 

(ii)  Customer has made no changes (nor permitted any change to be made 
other than by or with the express approval of Vendor) to the System.   

(b) EXCEPT FOR THE LIMITED WARRANTY SET FORTH ABOVE, THE 
SYSTEM IS PROVIDED “AS IS” AND “AS AVAILABLE” WITH ALL 
FAULTS AND WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. VENDOR MAKES 
NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY (EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR 
STATUTORY) WITH RESPECT TO THE SYSTEM, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE, ACCURACY, MERCHANTABILITY, OR NONINFRINGEMENT. 
VENDOR DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE SYSTEM WILL OPERATE 
UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-FREE. 

4. Confidential Information 
(a) Customer acknowledges the System contains trade secrets, Confidential 

Information and other proprietary information owned by Vendor. During the 
Term of this Agreement and for five (5) years thereafter, Customer shall not 
disclose Vendor Confidential Information to any other third party without 
Vendor’s prior written consent. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
Customer shall protect Vendor Confidential Information with the same degree of 
care it uses to protect its own confidential information of similar nature and 
importance, but with no less than reasonable care. Customer will not assist, 
communicate product functionality, promote or become a partner or equity stake 
holder with a competing 3rd party product; doing so results in a Breach of 
Contract. Customer shall promptly notify Vendor of any misuse or 
misappropriation of Vendor Confidential Information that comes to Customer’s 
attention. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Customer may disclose Vendor 
Confidential Information as required by applicable law or by proper legal or 
governmental authority. Customer shall give Vendor prompt notice of any such 
legal or governmental demand and reasonably cooperate with Vendor 
in any effort to seek a protective order or otherwise to contest such required 
disclosure and limit the scope of such disclosure, at Vendor’s expense. 

(b) Vendor Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) is in 
Customer’s possession at the time of disclosure, and can be independently 
verified; (ii) is independently developed by Customer without use of or reference 
to Vendor Confidential Information; (iii) becomes known publicly, before or after 
disclosure, other than as a result of Customer’s improper action or inaction; or 
(iv) is approved for release in writing by Vendor. 

(c) Customer agrees that no third parties, including consultants or independent 
contractors engaged or employed by Customer shall have access to Vendor 
Confidential Information without the prior written consent of Vendor. 

(d) Vendor agrees to use a commercially reasonable level of care to preserve the 
confidentiality of Customer Information. Customer is required to comply with 
applicable privacy laws regarding information inputted into the System. Vendor 
takes no responsibility for personally identifiable information, financial 
information, or any other sensitive information inputted by Customer, and makes 
no representations or warranties to guarantee the security of such information.  

(e) The parties expressly agree that the existence of and terms of this Agreement 
(including the Price Proposal) shall be maintained in confidence and that 
Customer shall not disclose the terms of this Agreement to any third party without 
the prior written approval of Vendor. 

(f) Customer agrees that breach of this Section 4 would cause Vendor irreparable 
injury, for which monetary damages would not provide adequate compensation, 
and that in addition to any other remedy, Vendor shall be entitled to injunctive 
relief against such breach or threatened breach, without proving actual damage or 
posting a bond or other security. 

5. Proprietary Rights 
(a) Vendor’s Proprietary Rights.  Exclusive of Customer Information, Vendor shall 

retain all right, title, and interest (including copyright and other intellectual 
property rights) relating to the System and the Vendor Confidential Information 
and all legally protectable elements or derivative works thereof.  Vendor may 
place copyright and/or proprietary notices, including hypertext links, within the 
System. Customer shall not alter or remove such notices without Vendor’s written 
permission. Vendor shall own and may freely use any feedback or suggestions 
regarding the System provided by Customer without attribution or the need for 
Vendor to pay Customer any royalties or other fees of any kind. 

(b) Customer’s Data Rights. Customer shall retain all rights to Customer Information 
inputted by Customer into the System. 

(c) In order to improve Vendor’s product and service offerings for its customers, 
Vendor may use System data in an aggregated, de-identified format with the 
following removed: personally identifiable information and the names and 
addresses of Customer and any of its users or customers. 

6. Term, Annual Support Adjustments and Site License 
The Term for this Agreement is set forth on the Price Proposal and becomes effective on 
the Go Live date. The Term of each Agreement shall automatically renew for an 
additional one-year period (regardless of monthly or annual fee payments) unless either 
party notifies the other in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of the Term. 
Vendor reserves the right to increase the annual (or monthly) fees by up to five percent 
(5%) at any given time. Written notification will be provided by Vendor to Customer at 
least thirty (30) days prior to any rate adjustment taking effect.  

7. Termination 
(a) By Vendor.  Vendor may terminate this Agreement at any time upon giving 

Customer a Notice of Termination if Customer breaches this Agreement and fails 
to cure such breach within ten (10) days of written notice describing such breach, 

Page 48

Item #5.



           e-Pak ASP Agreement  
 

r 

                       Soft-Pak Application Services Provider Agreement    
                               06/01/2020 

except in the case of failure to pay fees, which must be cured within five (5) days 
after Vendor gives Customer a delinquency notice.   

(b) By Customer. Customer has agreed to the contracted terms (annual or monthly) as 
listed on the Price Proposal. Customer may terminate this Agreement by 
providing Vendor written notice of termination if:  

i) Vendor materially breaches this Agreement and fails to cure such 
breach within thirty (30) days of written notice describing such breach; 

ii) Vendor becomes the subject of a voluntary or involuntary petition in 
bankruptcy, ceases business for any reason, insolvency, receivership, 
liquidation, or composition for the benefit of creditors, if such petition 
is not dismissed within sixty (60) days of filing;  

iii) Unscheduled downtime exceeds thirty hours over a monthly period; or 
iv) Customer is acquired and the new entity does not wish to enter into a 

similar agreement with Vendor, and provides Vendor with at least 
thirty (30) days written notice to terminate the Agreement. In this case, 
Customer (either existing or newly acquired entity) is responsible to 
pay Vendor one-half (1/2) of the remaining balance due of the Term 
agreement as liquidated damages. 

(c) Termination Procedures and Costs.  Upon written notice by Customer or Vendor, 
and an effective termination date of this Agreement, Vendor shall cease providing 
access to the System, Customer shall cease using the System, and all payment 
obligations of Customer through the Term shall immediately become due. If 
Customer makes recurring payments via credit card or E-Check, Vendor shall 
utilize that payment method for the outstanding balance owed.  

i) Upon full payment by Customer, Vendor shall immediately provide 
Customer all Customer Information and data which resulted from 
providing access to the System, in a format specified by the Customer 
(limited to excel, access or any ODBC compliant platform). 

ii)  If Customer terminates the Agreement under Section 7(b) i, ii, and iii, 
Customer is not responsible for any outstanding service fees to Vendor 
from the date of Vendor’s receipt of the written deficiency notice 
through the remaining balance of the Term.  

iii) If Customer is of monthly service and terminates the agreement for any 
reason outside Section 7(b) (i – iv), Customer shall pay Vendor half the 
remaining balance due for the Term.    

8. Limitation of Liability 
General.  Sections 3 (Warranty), 8 (Limitation of Liability), and 9 (Indemnification) set 
forth Vendor’s entire liability and Customer’s exclusive remedies.  In no event shall 
Vendor be liable for any amount in excess of amounts paid under this agreement during 
the six-month period prior to the event giving rise to such liability. UNDER NO 
CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL VENDOR BE LIABLE FOR ANY TYPE OF 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOST REVENUE, LOST 
PROFITS, REPLACEMENT GOODS, COST OF REPLACEMENT GOODS, LOSS 
OF INFORMATION, OR INTERRUPTION OR LOSS OF USE OF SERVICE OR 
EQUIPMENT, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, 
ARISING UNDER ANY THEORY OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING 
NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE.  The parties agree that the 
limitation and exclusions of liability and disclaimers specified in this agreement will 
survive and apply even if found to have failed of their essential purpose. 

9. Indemnification 
(a)    By Vendor. Vendor will indemnify, defend, and hold Customer harmless from and 

against any and all costs, liabilities, losses and expenses, (including, but not 
limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively “Losses”) resulting from any 
claim, suit, action or proceeding (each an “Action”) brought by any third party 
against Customer alleging (i) the infringement or misappropriation of any 
intellectual property right, including but not limited to copyright, trade secret and 
trademark rights, by the System, or (ii) personal injury, or any loss or damage to 
real or tangible personal property, to the extent caused by gross negligence by 
Vendor. Vendor’s indemnification obligation hereunder shall be subject to (a) 
receiving prompt written notice from Customer of the existence of any Action: 
(b) being able to, at its option, control the defense of such Action, including the 
selection of counsel; and (c) receiving full cooperation of Customer in the defense 
thereof.  Vendor’s indemnification obligations hereunder shall be mitigated to the 
extent of Customer’s negligence or willful misconduct. 

(b)     By Customer. Customer will indemnify, defend, and hold Vendor harmless from 
and against any and all costs, liabilities, losses and expenses, (including, but not 
limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively “Losses”) resulting from any 
claim, suit, action or proceeding (each an “Action”) brought by any third party 
against Vendor alleging (i) the infringement or misappropriation of any 
intellectual property right, including but not limited to copyright, trade secret and 
trademark rights, relating to Customer’s Information or caused by  modifications 
to the System made or requested by Customer, or (ii) personal injury, or any loss 
or damage to real or tangible personal property, caused by any act or omission by 
Customer. Customer’s indemnification obligation hereunder shall be subject to 
(a) receiving prompt written notice of the existence of any Action: (b) being able 
to, at its option, control the defense of such Action; (c) permitting Vendor to 
participate in the defense of any Action; and (d) receiving full cooperation of 
Vendor in the defense thereof.  Customer’s indemnification obligations hereunder 
shall be mitigated to the extent of Vendor’s negligence or willful misconduct. 

10. General Provisions 

(a) Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the provided Price Proposal, 
constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of all mutual understandings 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, superseding all prior 
and contemporaneous proposals, communications and understandings, oral or 
written. For the avoidance of doubt, this Agreement hereby supplants and 
terminates any confidentiality or non-disclosure agreement between the Parties.  

(b) Spool File – Vendor will delete spool files monthly that are 60 days old (or older) 
as part of Vendor’s monthly maintenance.  Vendor shall not be liable for any 
action related to the deletion of spool files.   

(c) Credits and Upgrades. Up to thirty (30) days after the Effective Date, Customer 
can apply 50% of the paid monthly service fee towards licensing i-Pak or e-Pak 
(V4 or higher), up to 50% of the i-Pak or e-Pak (and associated modules) list 
price.    

(d) Force Majeure. Vendor shall not be in default or otherwise liable for any delay in 
or failure of its performance hereunder where such delay or failure arises by 
reason of any Act of God, any government order or directive, war, pandemic, 
national emergency, insurrection, acts of terrorism, strikes or labor disputes, or 
other similar or dissimilar causes beyond Vendor’s control.   

(e) Amendment. The agreement may not be modified, altered or amended except by 
a written instrument duly executed by both parties.  

(f) Mediation. In the event of a dispute under this Agreement, the parties will first 
attempt to resolve the dispute in good faith. Unresolved disputes will be 
submitted to non-binding mediation in the County of San Diego, California prior 
to commencement of any legal or administrative proceeding for any alleged 
violation of the Agreement. If the parties cannot agree upon an individual to serve 
as mediator, they shall each select an attorney or other individual recognized as 
an approved mediator, and those two individuals selected shall jointly agree upon 
the selection of a third individual who shall alone serve as mediator. If such 
parties are also unable to agree upon an individual to serve as mediator, the 
requirement of each party to submit to non-binding mediation under this 
Agreement shall be waived.       

(g) Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement and performance hereunder shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of California. The parties agree that any lawsuit 
regarding this Agreement shall be tried in the County of San Diego, and each 
party hereto consents to personal jurisdiction by the State of California regarding 
any such lawsuit. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other 
party reasonable expenses, attorney’s fees and costs to the extent of the Court’s 
finding of liability percentage attributable to the losing party.       

(h) Read and Understood. Each party acknowledges that it has read and understands 
this agreement and agrees to be bound by its terms.    

11. Support & Training Services 
(a) Hourly Rates for Billable Services. The current hourly rate for billable services 

during normal working hours will be billed in half (0.5) hour increments. Support 
calls longer than thirty (30) minutes are deemed training and billed at the current 
hourly rate. There is a one-hour minimum for support /programming services 
outside normal working hours (i.e., off duty pager, expedited service) billed at 
$225 per hour for support and $275 per hour for programming. Cancellation of 
any scheduled services requires 24 hours advanced written notification prior to 
services being performed.  Any scheduled service not canceled as provided herein 
will be billed at that scheduled service’s regular rate. 

(b) Hours of Operation.  The Soft-Pak office is open Monday through Friday, 7am – 
5pm Pacific Time. Support Services hours of Operation are 7am to 5pm in the 
Customer’s local time zone (supported hours are ONLY within the following US 
Time Zones – Eastern, Central, Mountain, Pacific). 

(c) Days of Operation.  Weekend and Holiday Support is available except as defined 
by the following 11 Soft-Pak Holidays.  

New Year’s Day**      Good Friday* 
Memorial Day*     Independence Day* 
Labor Day*   Thanksgiving Day** 
Friday after Thanksgiving*     Christmas Eve Day Obsvd(12/22)*     
Christmas Day**      New Year’s Eve Day Obsd(12/29)* 
July 3, 2023 (floating Holiday)*     

 * Office is closed with on duty pager support available (billable). 
 **Support services will not respond to calls until next business day. 

Soft-Pak reserves the right to occasionally and temporarily activate pager 
support during normal business hours to accommodate staff meetings.  

12. Services Provided with No Additional Charge During Normal Business Hours 
(a) System Failures. Classified as the following: 

Class A – Major; resulting in billing errors or severe operational problems.  
Class B – Moderate; user inconveniences. 
Class C – Minor; cosmetic “bugs” that have little impact on system 
performance or data integrity. 

Any Class B or Class C support issue is billable outside normal business hours so 
long as the System performs as designed.  
Custom Software is NOT considered to be part of the System.   

(b) Technical Assistances. Vendor will answer inquires as to location of required 
data, specific program features or functions, evaluate error messages and provide 
solutions for specific challenges. Vendor is not responsible to run day to day 
functions for Customer without a charge.  

(c) Software Updates. Patches related to Class A and B errors will be provided to 
Customer on an “as required” basis. All new features and functions, including 
improvements, Class C error corrections and migration software required to 
incorporate the new features and functions shall be offered to Customer 
periodically. All normally scheduled upgrades / enhancements are provided by 

Page 49

Item #5.



           e-Pak ASP Agreement  
 

r 

                       Soft-Pak Application Services Provider Agreement    
                               06/01/2020 

vendor to client and need to be adhered to by client. Any maintenance testing, 
changes, or development work relating to existing custom software is billable (at 
any time), regardless if the existing change order is closed.  
 

13. Services Provided for an Additional Charge During Normal Business Hours 
(a) Third Party Hardware or Software Support. Maintenance, support or 

recommendations for any hardware or software that is not Soft-Pak created, 
licensed, or maintained is billable.  

(b) Custom Programming. All custom programming requests require a signed change 
order and are billable. At any update, should any custom software that is not core 
to the licensed program require additional support, testing, or Customer 

programming, that time is billable. Any modifications or creation of forms, 
accounting interfaces, invoices, reports and/or statements outside of the core 
licensed program is billable. 

(c) Printer Sessions. Printer Session and Crystal Report setup is billable at $150/hr., 
unless as otherwise noted in the Price Proposal 

(d) Expedited Features. Any Class C correction or custom program can be expedited 
with a signed change order to ensure timely delivery.   

(e) Additional Storage Cost. Any Customer who exceeds the allotted 20 GB of data 
storage per 10 licenses shall pay an additional $50 per month per each partial or 
full unit of 20GB of data storage above the allotted amount. Annual billing 
Customers shall be prorated.    

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement and thus becomes binding as of the Effective Date. 

VENDOR CUSTOMER 
 

By:  By:  
 (Authorized Signature)  (Authorized Signature) 

Name:           Brian Porter   –    President, Soft-Pak Name:  
   (Print or Type Name and Title) 

Date:  Date:  

 
 

Remit to: 

Soft-Pak 

PO Box 745642 

Atlanta, GA 30374-5642 

 

Page 50

Item #5.



Council Member _____________________ introduced the following Resolution, which 
was seconded by Council Member _____________________. 

 
RESOLUTION 091123-E 

 
AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH 3RD EYE THROUGH INGRAM EQUIPMENT 

COMPANY FOR COLLECTIONS HARDWARE AND MONITORING SOLUTIONS  
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to provide adequate and efficient 
equipment for our Public Works Department to enable them to serve our citizens, and;  
 

WHEREAS, new garbage truck monitoring technology can improve efficiencies and 
enhance safety for employees and citizens, and; 

 
WHEREAS, said agreement will include the following: 
 

 
  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, AS FOLLOWS: 

1) The City Council authorizes an agreement with 3Rd Eye for Garbage Collections 
Hardware through Ingram Equipment Company, and Monthly Monitoring for the 
Public Works Department, at a cost not to exceed $83,432.87 up front and $890 
monthly. 
 

2) That the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and attest any related, and 
necessary documents on behalf of the City for said purchase.  

 
      Y / N         Y / N  

Sophie Martin  ______   Jamie Cole  ______  
Rick Ellis  ______   Zach Zahariadis ______ 
Stacy Rakestraw ______   Kerri Pate  ______ 
Greg Farrell  ______ 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk   Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
APPROVED: 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor  

Page 51

Item #6.



Councilmember _____________________ introduced the following Resolution for adoption, seconded 
by Councilmember _______________________. 

 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 091123-F 

 
A RESOLUTION TO SET ALABASTER CITY COUNCIL REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETINGS  

BEGINNING IN NOVEMBER 2023 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALABASTER, ALABAMA, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
WHEREAS, the Alabaster City Council meets bi-monthly currently on the 2nd and 4th Mondays of 
each month, and; 
 
WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend the current schedule, pursuant to provisions of 
Ordinance 14-004, Section 2, the Alabaster City Council does hereby set meetings beginning 
November 2023, as follows, each meeting begins at 6:30 pm with a pre-meeting set to begin at 
6:00pm, all held at 1953 Municipal Way. 
 
WHEREAS the Alabaster City Council will continue meeting bi-monthly on the 2nd and 4th 
Mondays of each month until amended, and 
 
WHEREAS the Alabaster City Council will also meet bi-monthly on the Thursday preceding each 
Regular City Council Meeting for a Council Work Session unless amended. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk   Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
 
APPROVED 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor 
 
 

Page 52

Item #7.



Resolution 091123-G 
 

Council Member _________________ introduced the following Resolution which was 
seconded by Council Member __________________: 

 

 
RESOLUTION 091123-G 

 

AUTHORIZING AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT WITH  
PC SWEET HOME BAMA, LLC 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council (the "Council") of the City of Alabaster (the 
"City"), as follows: 
 
Section 1. Findings.  That the Council, upon evidence duly submitted to and 
considered by it, hereby finds, determines and declares as follows: 
 
(a) The City has heretofore proposed authorization of a Grant Agreement (the 
“Agreement", and attached hereto as Exhibit A) with PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC in order 
to promote commercial development within the City, which will upgrade and improve 
various aspects if the façade of Promenade North, under the proposed terms of the 
Agreement the maximum sum of $850,000.00 of City Sales and Use Tax collected from 
the a defined project area will be used to promote economic development within the City.  
The term of this Agreement shall expire five (5) years or less from the date of the opening 
of in the Project area. 
 
(b) The Agreement will provide that all proceeds derived therein described will be 
used by PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC as inducement payments to promote economic 
development by developing, constructing, and leasing facilities to one or more retail and 
commercial spaces within the City and the façade of the Promenade. To the extent that 
the Agreement with PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC will encumber certain sales and use tax 
revenues, the City Attorney is authorized to file a lawsuit pursuant to the provisions of 
the constitution and laws of the State of Alabama, including particularly Amendment No. 
772 to the Constitution of Alabama of 1901 (the "Economic Development Amendment") 
to confirm the validity to the proposed Agreement with PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC and 
to insure the Agreement is indeed a promotion of the economic development of the City 
in accordance with the economic development goals and objectives of the City.  
 
(c) The Council has heretofore caused to be published in The Shelby County Reporter 
(the newspaper having the largest circulation in the City) in its edition of September 3, 
2023, a notice to the public announcing the holding by the Council, at its regularly 
scheduled meeting, of a public hearing at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, September 11, 2023 in 
the Alabaster City Hall Building located at 1953 Municipal Way, Alabaster, Alabama, for 
the purpose of receiving comments from interested citizens concerning the proposed 
authorization, execution and delivery of the Agreement by the City.  As provided in the 
aforesaid notice to the public published in The Shelby County Reporter, copies of a draft 
of the Agreement have been available for public inspection at the office of the City Clerk, 
at City Hall, 1953 Municipal Way, Alabaster, Alabama. 
 
(d) Any interested person appearing at the meeting of the Council has been given an 
opportunity to make comments to the Council on the proposed authorization, and 
execution of the Agreement by the City, and the Council has considered such comments 
as may have been made with respect thereto. 
 
(e) The public benefits sought to be achieved by the proposed authorization, and 
execution of the Agreement by the City is the promotion of local industrial and economic 

Page 53

Item #8.



Resolution 091123-G 
 

development and the stimulation of the local economy, the inducement of commercial 
enterprises to locate new facilities in the City and new residents in the City (resulting in 
additional tax revenues for the City), increasing employment opportunities in the City and 
the promotion of the expansion and retention of business enterprises in the City, inuring 
to the economic health of the City.  For purposes of Amendment No. 772 to the 
Constitution of Alabama of 1901 as amended in 2022, PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC and the 
business entities to whom or for whose benefit the City proposes to grant public funds or 
thing of value.  The expenditure of public funds for the purpose specified in this resolution 
and expressed in the agreement will serve a valid and sufficient public purpose, 
notwithstanding any incidental benefit accruing to any private entity or entities. 
 
Section 2. Approval.  The Council hereby approves the proposed agreement, and 
execution of the Agreement by the City in accordance with the applicable provision of the 
Economic Development Amendment. 
 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
 
____________________________  _______________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk   Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem  
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor 

Page 54

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

 
Council member __________________ introduced the following resolution, seconded by council 
member ________________________ after a public hearing thereon. 
 

 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT 

 
This ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT is made and entered as of ______ 

day of September 2023 between the CITY OF ALABASTER, ALABAMA, an Alabama municipal 
corporation (the “City"), and PC SWEET HOME BAMA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company  
(the "Owner"). 

 
Recitals 

 
A. The Owner expects and intends to expand and increase the tax and revenue base of 

the City by development of the retail facilities described herein. 
 

B. The City has agreed to assist the Owner with a Grant as provided herein. 

 
C. The Owner has agreed to construct the Project within the Project Area as provided 

herein, together with all improvements, both public and private. 
 

D. Pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Alabama referenced herein and for 
the purposes referenced herein, the City and the Owner have delivered this Agreement. 

 
Agreement 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, and the mutual covenants 

and agreements herein contained, the City and the Owner hereby covenant and agree as follows: 
ARTICLE 1 

 
DEFINITIONS 

 

 For purposes of this Agreement the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

 
"City Sales and Use Tax" for any Monthly Period shall mean collectively sales and use taxes 

levied by the City (commonly called Sales and Use taxes) during such Monthly Period which consist 
of  a Sales and Use tax on persons engaged in retail sales (subject to exemption of certain property 
as provided by law). The City currently has a five percent (5%) Sales and Use Tax.  
 

"City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds" for any Quarterly Period shall mean and include all 
proceeds and receipts of the City Sales and Use Tax from “Michael’s”, but shall not include any 
proceeds or receipts (i) from the levy by the City of privilege, license or excise taxes not described 
in the definition of City Sales and Use Tax, (ii) from the levy of privilege license or excise taxes of any 
kind, type or nature by taxing authorities other than the City, (iii) from the levy of any increase in 
the rate of the City Sales and Use Tax enacted after the date of this Agreement. 
 

"Commencement Date" shall mean the date on which the “Michael’s” opens for business to 
the public in the Project Area and has commenced the payment of rent and City Sales and Use Tax. 

"Owner" shall mean PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC, and the successors and assigns thereof. 

 
“Enabling Law” shall mean Section 94.01 of the Official Recompilation of the Constitution of 

Page 55

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

the Alabama 1901 and Section 11-47-2 of the CODE OF ALABAMA (1975) as amended in 2022. 

 
 “Grant” shall mean those payments made by the City to the Owner pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 

“Grant Schedule” shall mean the percentage of City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds used to 
determine the amount of the quarterly payment to Owner attached as Exhibit “B”. 
 
 “Michael’s” shall mean the national brand craft retail store within defined area as illustrated 
in Exhibit “A” Project Area.  
 

"Monthly Period" shall mean a period of one calendar month, commencing on the first day 
of each month and ending on the last day of each month. 
 

"Payment Date" shall mean the first business day of each quarter, beginning on the first 
business day after the quarter of the month which immediately follows the Commencement Date, 
pursuant to the following Schedule attached as Exhibit “C” All payments shall be made in arrears 
after the closing of the quarterly books. 

 
“Project” shall mean the construction and reconstruction of the former Bed Bath and 

Beyond unit in the Project Area for the use and benefit of “Michael’s”, a craft store, repair of the 
culvert under the parking lot, update certain landscaping and ongoing cutting the grass and picking 
up the trash in the detention ponds. 

 
"Project Area" shall mean the real property which is described in Exhibit “A”. 

 

“Project City Grant Payments" shall mean an amount equal to two cents of the current 5 
cents of sales and uses taxes collected by the City in from the “Michael’s” net of all costs incurred 
by the City to collect the City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds within the Project Area. Costs incurred by 
the City are limited solely to the actual costs of audit and collection of use and sale taxes from 
Michael’s. 
 

“Project Real Property Investment” shall mean the cost paid by the Owner for the required 
improvements within the Project. 
 

 “Section 94.01” shall mean Section 94.01 of the Official Recompilation of the Constitution 
of Alabama of 1901, and commonly referred to as Amendment 772 to the Constitution of Alabama 
of 1901 as amended in 2022. 

 
"Total City Grant Termination Date" shall mean the earlier of (i) 5 years from the first 

Payment Date,  or (ii) the Payment Date on which the City shall have paid as Project City Grant 
Payments an aggregate amount equal to the Total City Grant Commitment, or (iii) Michael's failure 
to open for business to the public prior to October 31, 2025, if applicable, unless otherwise approved 
by the City. 
 

"Total City Grant Commitment" shall mean an amount paid to the Owner for improvements 
in the Project Area, not to exceed $850,000.00, without interest, pursuant to the schedule as set 
forth in Exhibits B and C. 
 
  
  

Page 56

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

 
ARTICLE 2 

 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

 
 The City hereby represents and warrants as follows: 

 
(1) The Grant shall be paid to the Owner in accordance with the terms hereof. 

 
(2) The issuance of the Grant for the purposes set forth in this Agreement will 

result in direct financial benefits to the City. 
 

(3) Pursuant to Section 5.01(1), the obligation of the City for the payment of 
any amounts under this Agreement is payable solely from and shall not exceed the Project 
City Grant Payments.  The City shall never be obligated to pay any amounts under this 
Grant Agreement which shall be more than the Project City Grant Payments received by 
the City during the term of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

 
DURATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
The obligations of the City and the Owner hereunder shall arise on its execution as required 

by law and the acquisition by the Owner of the Project property and shall continue until the  
Termination Date. 

 

ARTICLE 4 

 
OBLIGATIONS OF THE OWNER SECTION 

 
4.01 Description of Obligations 

(1) The Owner hereby agrees to observe and perform all agreements thereof under this 
Agreement duly and punctually. 

 
(2) The Owner hereby agrees to do the following to facilitate the Project: 

 
(a) Provide for the buildout of the former Bed, Bath and Beyond space for a new 

Michael’s arts and crafts store. Prior to receiving incentives, the Michael’s store shall be open and 
producing sales tax. 

 
(b)  Within eight (8) months after the date of the full execution of this Agreement, the 

Owner will have begun work shoring the culvert under the parking lot.  In addition, Owner will reseal 
and restripe the parking lots under its control in 2024 for the Ross Lot (depicted on Exhibit A-and in 
2025 for the Amstar Lot (depicted on Exhibit A ). 

 
(c) Owner shall maintain three detention ponds adjacent to and serving the shopping 

center; provided, however, that this maintenance shall only include cutting back grass/weeds 
(anticipated during growing season-May-October) and removal of trash and debris, as needed.  

 
(d) Provide preventive maintenance to the shopping center buildings, ground signage 

including pressure washing, resealing and repainting on or before December 31, 2025. 
 
(e) Participate in a one-time 50/50 cost split with the city to relandscape and spruce up 

Colonial Promenade Parkway (the “Promenade Improvements”). This will include removal of 
invasive plant materials at the shopping center entrance at Highway 31 and removal, as allowed, of 
fencing and invasive plant material running parallel to I 65 along Colonial Promenade Parkway. This 
shall also include installation of attractive, low-maintenance plantings (or possibly hardscapes, 
natural-looking artificial turf) in areas of the Colonial Promenade Parkway median that are difficult 

Page 57

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

to regularly maintain. The city and owner (and/or owner representative) shall meet with the 
selected landscaping company in the next three months to identify areas that need to be addressed. 
Both parties shall jointly determine a plan of action needed and direct the landscaping company to 
execute the plan; provided, however, that Owner shall have no obligation to contribution more than 
$35,000 towards the cost of any such Promenade Improvements.  

 
(f) Should the work described above not be commenced within 30 months of the 

execution of this Agreement, absent extensions approved by the City in writing, this remainder of 
this Agreement shall be terminated, and no further payments will be due thereon.  Upon request, 
Owner shall provide City with documentation reasonably requested to evidence payment of the 
work described herein. 

SECTION 5 

 
AGREEMENTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY SECTION 

 
5.01 Nature, Amount and Duration of Obligation of City. 
 

 

(1) The City hereby agrees to pay as a grant to the Owner in arrears two cents of the 
five cents per dollar of City sales and uses taxes paid by Michael’s in the Project Area as set forth 
in Exhibit B. . 

 

(2) The City hereby agrees to pay to the Owner in arrears on each Payment Date during 
the Term the Sales and Use Tax portion of the Project City Grant Payments determined by the City 
to be due and payable on such Payment Date.   

 

(3) The obligation of the City for the payment of the Project City Grant Payments: 

 
(a) is a limited obligation payable solely from the City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds 

generated from “Michael’s”; 

 
(b) shall never constitute a general obligation, or a charge against the general 

credit or taxing powers of the City within the meaning of any constitutional provision or 
statutory limitation whatsoever. 

 
(c) shall commence on the first Payment Date after the Commencement Date. 

 
(4) The maximum amount of the Project City Grant Payments the City shall pay under 

this Agreement shall be limited to and shall not exceed the Total City Grant Commitment. 
 
(5) The City shall have no obligation to pay any amount under this Agreement from and 

after the Termination Date. 
 
(6) The City agrees to participate with Owner in a one-time 50/50 cost split to 

relandscape and spruce up Colonial Promenade Parkway. This will include removal of invasive plant 
materials at the shopping center entrance at Highway 31 and removal, as allowed, of fencing and 
invasive plant material running parallel to I 65 along Colonial Promenade Parkway. This shall also 
include installation of attractive, low-maintenance plantings (or possibly hardscapes, natural-
looking artificial turf) in areas of the Colonial Promenade Parkway median that are difficult to 
regularly maintain. The City and Owner (and/or owner representative) shall meet with the selected 
landscaping company in the next three months to identify areas that need to be addressed. Both 
parties shall jointly determine a plan of action needed and direct the landscaping company to 
execute the plan 

 
5.02   Determination and Payment of Project City Grant Payments. 
 

(1) On each Payment Date the City shall: 
 

(i) determine the Project City Grant Payments (if any) to be made for the prior 

Page 58

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

quarterly period (provided that the initial Project City Sales and Use Tax Payment shall be 
calculated for the period between the Commencement Date and the initial Payment Date); 
and 

 
(ii) pay to the Owner, such amount of Project City Grant Payments as determined 

under Section 5.02(1)(i). 

 
(2) The City will permit any attorneys, accountants or other agents or representatives 

designated by the Owner to (i) have access to and visit and inspect any of the accounting systems, 
books of account, and financial records and properties of the City which pertain to the City Sales 
and Use Tax Proceeds and the determination of Project City Grant Payments, (ii) examine and make 
abstracts from any such accounting systems, books and records, and (iii) discuss the affairs, finances 
and accounts of the City pertaining to the City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds and the determination 
of Project City Grant Payments,  with its officers, employees or agents, all at reasonable business 
times  and upon reasonable notice; provided, however, that nothing in this section shall permit 
inspection of City tax records relating to any taxes other than the City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds 
with respect to taxpayers located within the Project Area. 

 
(3) The review and analysis of 5.02(2) will be contingent upon compliance with the 

Alabama Taxpayer Bill of Rights provisions, penalties, and enforcement thereof.  At no time will 
nonpublic confidential information be provided to any entity unless otherwise specified in 
accordance with law.  

 
5.03 The Grant. 

 
(1) The obligation of the City to pay the Project City Grant Payments hereunder shall be 

evidenced by a single limited obligation Grant solely from, and secured on an equal and 
proportionate basis by a pledge of, so much of the City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds as shall be 
necessary to pay the Project City Grant Payments (the "Grant") as set forth in Exhibit B. 

 
(2) The Grant shall bear no interest, shall be issued in an aggregate principal amount not 

exceeding the Total City Grant Commitment and subject to all the terms and conditions hereof, and 
shall be dated the date of delivery, and shall mature on the Termination Date. 

 
(3) The Grant shall be duly executed, sealed, and attested by the City, and shall be 

registered by the City as a conditional claim against so much of the City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds 
as shall be necessary to pay the Project City Grant Payments with respect to such Grant and the 
Grant fund established therefor as therein provided. 
 

(4) The Grant shall be registered and transferred as provided therein. 

 
5.04 Special Agreements of the City. 

 
(1) All proceedings of the governing body of the City heretofore had and taken, and all 

resolutions and orders adopted pursuant thereto with respect to the levy and collection of the City 
Sales and Use Tax, are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects from and after the effective date 
thereof. 

(2) The City covenants and agrees: 

 
(i) The City shall, if this Agreement and the Grant shall be outstanding, continue 

to levy and to provide for the assessment and collection of the Sales and Use taxes which 
provide the City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds at rates not less than those in effect on the 
date of this Agreement. 

 
(ii) The City shall not apply any of the City Sales and Use Tax Proceeds which are 

allocable to or included as part of Project City Grant Payments for the payment of any 
governmental expenses of operating the City other than costs of collection of such taxes, 
as herein provided. 

 

Page 59

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

 
5.05 Special Agreements of the Owner. 
 

(1) Since this development utilized public funds set aside as a grant for purposes 
contained herein, certain protections must be in place to provide assurance to the 
public its’ funds are utilized properly by terms contained herein within the “Grant” 
parameters.  The Owner agrees to take all effort necessary to attain and continue 
full occupancy of this Project.  
 

ARTICLE 6 

 
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES SECTION  

6.01  Events of Default 

Any one or more of the following shall constitute an event of default by the City or the Owner 
hereunder (an "Event of Default") under this Agreement (whatever the reason for such event and 
whether it shall be voluntary or involuntary or be affected by operation of law or pursuant to any 
judgment, decree or order of any court or any order, rule or regulation of any administrative or 
governmental body): 
 

(a) default in the performance, or breach, of any covenant or warranty of the  
City in this Agreement, and the continuance of such default or breach for a period of 30 days 
after there has been given, by registered or certified mail, to the City by the Owner a written 
notice specifying such default or breach and requiring it to be remedied and stating that such 
notice is a “notice of default” hereunder, provided that if such default is of a kind which 
cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty-day period, the City shall have a reasonable 
period of time within which to cure such default, provided that it begins to cure the default 
promptly after its receipt of such written notice and proceeds in good faith, and with due 
diligence, to cure such default; or 
 

(b) default in the performance, or breach, of any covenant or warranty of the 
Owner in this Agreement, and the continuance of such default or breach for a period of 30 
days after there has been given, by registered or certified mail, to the Owner by the City a 
written notice specifying such default or breach and requiring it to be remedied and stating 
that such notice is a “notice of default” hereunder, provided that if such default is of a kind 
which cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty-day period, the Owner shall have a 
reasonable period of time within which to cure such default, provided that it begins to cure 
the default promptly after its receipt of such written notice and proceeds in good faith, and 
with due diligence, to cure such default. 

 
6.02 Remedies 
 

Each party hereto may, and each third-party beneficiary hereof may (subject to Section 
6.03), proceed to protect its rights and interests by suit in equity, action at law or other appropriate 
proceedings, whether for the specific performance of any covenant or agreement of any other party 
herein contained or in aid of the exercise of any power or remedy available at law or in equity. 
 
6.03  Remedies Subject to Applicable Law 
 

All rights, remedies and powers provided by this Agreement may be exercised only to the 
extent the exercise thereof does not violate any applicable provision of law in the premises, and all 
the provisions of this Article are intended to be subject to all applicable mandatory provisions of 
law which may be controlling in the premises and to be limited to the extent necessary so that the 
same will not render this Agreement invalid or unenforceable. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE 7 

 

Page 60

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION SECTION 

7.01 Enforceability 
 

The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable. In the event any provision hereof shall 
be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not 
invalidate or render unenforceable any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

 
 

7.02  Prior Agreements Cancelled 
 

This Agreement shall completely and fully supersede all other prior agreements, both 
written and oral, among the parties hereto relating to the matters contained herein.  None of the 
parties hereto shall hereafter have any rights under any of such prior agreements but shall look to 
this Agreement for definition and determination of all their respective rights, liabilities and 
responsibilities relating to the matters contained herein. 

 
7.03  Counterparts 
 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute but one and 
the same agreement. 
 
7.04  Binding Effect; Governing Law 
 

(a) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the parties 
hereto and their respective successors and assigns except as otherwise provided herein. 
 

(b) This Agreement shall be governed exclusively by the laws of the State of Alabama. 

 
7.05 Notices 
 

(a) All notices, demands, consents, certificates or other communications hereunder shall 
be in writing, shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered personally to the 
party or to an officer of the party to whom the same is directed, or mailed by registered or certified 
mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight courier, addressed as follows: 
 
 If to the City:   Attn: Mayor and/or City Administrator 
     1953 Municipal Way  
     Alabaster, AL 35007 
 
 If to the Owner:  PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC  
     1301 Riverplace Blvd, Ste 1600 
     Jacksonville, FL 33207 
       
 

(b) Any such notice or other document shall be deemed to be received as of the date 
delivered, if delivered personally, or as of three (3) days after the date deposited in the mail, if 
mailed, or the next business day, if sent by overnight courier. Any such notice or other document 
delivered by mail must be sent with the return receipt required. 

 
 
7.06 Delegation and Assignment of this Agreement 
 

(a) The City shall have no authority or power to, and shall not, delegate to any person 
the duty or obligation to observe or perform any agreement or obligation of the City hereunder.  
Nothing in this section, however, shall prevent the City from engaging appropriate consultants, 
experts, agents or outside representatives to perform the City’s obligations under this Economic 
Development Grant Agreement on behalf of the City. 
 

Page 61

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

(b) The City shall not have any authority or power to, and shall not, assign to any person 
any right of the City hereunder or any interest of the City herein. 
 

(c) The Owner may assign the Grant payments as collateral for outstanding obligations 
and loans on the Project by filing with the City Administrator a properly executed collateral 
assignment that adequately informs the City of the assignment of the rights to payment of the 
Grant.   Owner may not assign any of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 

7.07  Amendments 
 

This Agreement may be amended or supplemented only by an instrument in writing duly 
authorized, executed and delivered by each party hereto. 
 
 

[Remainder of this page intentionally blank.] 
  

Page 62

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be executed in its name, 
under seal, and the same attested, all by officers thereof duly authorized thereunto, and the 
Owner has executed this Agreement under seal, and the parties have caused this Agreement to 
be dated the date and year first above written. 

 
CITY 
 
CITY OF ALABASTER, ALABAMA 

 
 
SEAL By:   __________________________  
 Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:      
 City Clerk 
 
 

 
OWNER 
 
PC SWEET HOME BAMA, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company   
 
By:     
Its:      

Page 63

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Project Area 
Tax Folio:  47-4745977 

 

The Project is comprised of the two areas outlined in blue below.   The lot shown on the 
left side is the “Amstar Lot” and the lot shown on the right side is the “Ross Lot” 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 64

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 

Schedule of Determination of Incentive Payments 
 

Years 
Quarters Actual Receipt^^ 

1 1-4^ Two of five cents sales and use taxes from Michael’s 

2 5-8 Two of five cents sales and use taxes from Michael’s 

3 9-12 Two of five cents sales and use taxes from Michael’s 

4 13-16 Two of five cents sales and use taxes from Michael’s 

5 17-20 Two of five cents sales and use taxes from Michael’s 

 
^ Quarters are the three-month quarterly cycles beginning with October 1 of each year.  However, the 
first quarter for purposes of this Schedule of Payments, and number of each quarter thereafter, shall 
be the city’s quarter, or portion thereof, in which the Commencement Date occurs and “Michael’s” 
shall first open for business and commence paying rent and sales and use tax. 

 
 

Page 65

Item #8.



 
 
 
 
  

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

SCHEDULE OF GRANT PAYMENTS 

 
All payments made in arrears after the closing of the quarterly books 

 

Payment Due Date Payment 
Period 

Tax Collected from the Project 

October 1 Previous Third Quarter Previous April, May and June 

January 2 Previous Fourth Quarter Previous July, August, 
September 

April 1 Previous First Quarter Previous October, November, 
December 

July 1 Previous Second Quarter Previous January, February, 
and March 

 

Page 66

Item #8.



Council Member _________________ introduced the following Resolution, which was seconded 
by Council Member _____________________: 

 
 

RESOLUTION 091123-H 
 

RESCINDING RESOLUTION 071323-A AND AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER  
FOR RESOLUTION 071323 TO INCLUDE ALLOWANCE FOR  

PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF TURF 
 

WHEREAS, on July 13, 2023, in Resolution 071323-A the City Council of the City of 
Alabaster, authorized an agreement with FieldTurf USA, INC for the purchase of turf for 
the Veterans Park 2023 Renovation in the amount of $971,705; and, 

 
WHEREAS, after further review and advice of counsel, administrative staff have 

recommended the rescinding of Resolution 071323-A, and its associated agreement, 
decreasing the cost of the project by ($971,705); and, 

 
WHEREAS, on July 13, 2023, the City Council of the City of Alabaster, also awarded 

the bid for the Veterans Park 2023 Renovation to Specialty Turf Supply, Inc in the amount 
of $4,253,071; and, 

 
WHEREAS, a change order for turf and installation at Veteran’s Park has been 

proposed whereby STS, Inc.’s contract will include all purchase and installation of turf; 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, Resolution 071323 shall be amended to provide an allowance for the 
purchase and installation of turf for the Veterans Park Improvement Project 2023 in the 
amount of $1,205,817.45, with a net change to the project in the amount of $234,109.45. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ALABASTER, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Resolution 071323-A, and the associated agreement between FieldTurf USA, 
INC in the amount of $971,705 be and is hereby rescinded. 
 

2. Resolution 071323 be and is hereby amended to add a change order to 
provide an allowance for the purchase and installation of turf for the Veterans 
Park Improvement Project 2023. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Alabaster further 

authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to take all actions necessary to enforce this 
resolution.  
      Y / N         Y / N  

Sophie Martin  ______   Jamie Cole  ______  
Rick Ellis  ______   Zach Zahariadis ______ 
Stacy Rakestraw ______   Kerri Pate  ______ 
Greg Farrell  ______ 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk   Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
APPROVED: 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor  

Page 67

Item #9.



 

September 11, 2023 
 Project No.: 3658810 

 
 
 
 
Mayor Scott Brakefield 
City of Alabaster 
1953 Municipal Way 
Alabaster, Alabama 35007 
 
RE: Veterans Park Renovations – Changer Order No. 1 
 
Dear Mayor Brakefield, 
 
As you are aware, the City has decided to move the cost of materials for the 
diamond field turf to the construction contractor’s (Specialty Turf Supply, Inc.) scope 
of work. This comes after the turf supplier (FieldTurf) discovered an error in their 
pricing which mistakenly allocated costs disproportionately between the city and 
the STS. This decision was made at the advice of the city attorney. 
 
As we have evaluated the pricing supplied to us, we have concluded that STS is 
due a change order in the amount of $1,205,817.45. This number covers the 
original combined FieldTurf numbers, the delta in the installation that STS was 
negotiating, and incidentals associated with the statutory bonding requirements. 
See the summary below: 
 
 
Cost    Item Description      
$1,024,989.00  Field Turf Materials Base Price 
$39,397.00   Field Turf Playground (Alt 2) 
$13,555.00   Field Turf Landscape Turf Upgrade  
$401,469.00   Field Turf Installation (Diamond Fields) 
$23,474.00   Field Turf Installation (Playground Turf) 
$16,907.45   Field Turf Bonding Cost 
$9,500.00   STS Bonding Cost 
$1,529,291.45  Subtotal of Turf and Playground Cost 
 
 
($323,474.00)  Deduct STS Original Installation Cost 
 
$1,205,817.45   Total for Change Order No. 1 
 
 
 

Page 68

Item #9.



 
Mayor Scott Brakefield 
September 11, 2023 
Page - 2 
 

 
 

We recommend the City approve this change order at the next council meeting. 
Please contact me with any question or if you should need additional information 
to support this recommendation. 
 
Respectfully,  
 
Barge Design Solutions, Inc.  
 
 
 
  
Christopher J. Grace, PE, Vice President 
Project Manager 
 

c: Mr. Fred Hawkins, PE, City 

 Mr. Ernie Clark, City 

 Mr. Casey Oliver, PE, Barge 

 Mr. Steve Provost, PLA, ASLA, Barge 

 

Page 69

Item #9.



Page 70

Item #9.



Page 71

Item #9.



Council Member ____________________introduced the following Resolution, which 
was seconded by Council Member __________________. 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 091123-I 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION AGREEMENT 
FOR A FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. STPBH-0119(  ) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Alabaster as follows: 
 
That the City enter into an agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and through 
the Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) relating to a project for: 
 
Additional lanes on SR-119 from Silver Creek Parkway to CR-12 including a multi-use 
path from Veterans Park to CR-26- Phase II; Project# STPBH-0119( ); CPMS Ref# 
100074590. 
 
Which agreement is before this Council, and that the agreement be executed in the name 
of the City, by the Mayor for and on its behalf and that it be attested by the City Clerk and 
the official seal of the City be affixed thereto. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the agreement 
by all parties, that a copy of such agreement be kept on file by the City. 

 
      Y / N         Y / N  

Sophie Martin  ______   Jamie Cole  ______  
Rick Ellis  ______   Zach Zahariadis ______ 
Stacy Rakestraw ______   Kerri Pate  ______ 
Greg Farrell  ______ 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
I, the undersigned qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Alabaster, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 11th 
day of September,2023, and that such resolution is on file in the City Clerk's Office. 
 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
 
____________________________  _______________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk    Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor 

Page 72

Item #10.



Page 73

Item #10.



Page 74

Item #10.



Page 75

Item #10.



Page 76

Item #10.



Page 77

Item #10.



Page 78

Item #10.



Page 79

Item #10.



Page 80

Item #10.



Page 81

Item #10.



Page 82

Item #10.



Page 83

Item #10.



Page 84

Item #10.



Page 85

Item #10.



Page 86

Item #10.



Page 87

Item #10.



Page 88

Item #10.



Page 89

Item #10.



Page 90

Item #10.



Page 91

Item #10.



Council Member ____________________introduced the following Resolution, which 
was seconded by Council Member __________________. 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 091123-J 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UTILITY AND CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 
FOR A FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. STPBH-0119(  ) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Alabaster as follows: 

 
That the City enter into an agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and through 
the Alabama Department of Transportation relating to a project for: 

 
Additional lanes on SR-119 from Silver Creek Parkway to CR-12 including a multi-use 
path from Veterans Park to CR-26- Phase II; Project# STPBH-0119( ); 
CPMS Ref# 100076801 and 100076800. 

 
Which agreement is before this Council, and that the agreement be executed in the name 
of the City, by the Mayor for and on its behalf and that it be attested by the City Clerk and 
the official seal of the City be affixed thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the agreement 
by all parties, that a copy of such agreement be kept on file by the City. 

 
      Y / N         Y / N  

Sophie Martin  ______   Jamie Cole  ______  
Rick Ellis  ______   Zach Zahariadis ______ 
Stacy Rakestraw ______   Kerri Pate  ______ 
Greg Farrell  ______ 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
I, the undersigned qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Alabaster, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 11th 
day of September,2023, and that such resolution is on file in the City Clerk's Office. 
 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
 
____________________________  _______________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk    Greg Farrell, Council President Pro Tem 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor 

 

Page 92

Item #11.



Page 93

Item #11.



Page 94

Item #11.



Page 95

Item #11.



Page 96

Item #11.



Page 97

Item #11.



Page 98

Item #11.



Page 99

Item #11.



Page 100

Item #11.



Page 101

Item #11.



Page 102

Item #11.



Page 103

Item #11.



Page 104

Item #11.



Page 105

Item #11.



Page 106

Item #11.



Page 107

Item #11.



Page 108

Item #11.



Page 109

Item #11.



Page 110

Item #11.



Page 111

Item #11.



A public hearing having previously been set by Council on September 11, 2023, Council 
Member _________________ introduced the following Resolution, which was seconded by 
Council Member __________________. 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION  102323 
 

A RESOLUTION AFFIRMING RECOMMENDATION FROM THE  
ALABASTER FIRE MARSHAL 

TO ABATE WEEDS ON ONE PROPERTY 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to provide for the general welfare of City 
residents pursuant to provisions of Ordinance 20-100, and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Alabaster to provide 
the citizens with the most efficient and effective means of completing the requirements of 
Sections 18-88 through 18-96 of the Alabaster Code of Ordinances as Amended by Ordinance No. 
20-100, and 
 
 WHEREAS, after careful consideration, the Alabaster Fire Marshal recommends a 
declaration that the weeds located at the following property constitutes a nuisance and should 
be abated in accordance with the City’s Ordinance and State Law: 
 
 
 Owner Property Address Parcel Identification No 
 
 
1 

 
Elizabeth R & James G &  

Hanna B Zanthos 
637 Carpenter Way 
Auburn AL 36830 

 

 
  205 Meadowlark Dr 
Alabaster, AL 35007 

 
23 5 22 0 001 045.000 

    

WHEREAS, the Fire Marshal does affirm the property owner(s) were provided notices as 
required by law, and  
 
 WHEREAS, this date, the next regular council meeting of the City of Alabaster after report 
to the City Council of the condition of such property, is set to declare whether the weeds 
constitute a nuisance and to set a subsequent hearing as to whether the City should abate the 
nuisance if such was not done within thirty (30) days of said Council resolution. 
 
 WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the information provided by the Alabaster Fire 
Marshal and the public comments, if any, the weeds are deemed a nuisance and in need of 
abatement. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1.      The weeds located at 205 Meadowlark Drive Alabaster, Alabama are hereby found to be 
a public nuisance and is ordered to be abated.  
 
2. The Fire Marshall is hereby ordered to place signage at the property that a public hearing 
on Abatement will be had at the October 23rd ,2023, Regular Council Meeting of the City of 
Alabaster, Alabama, 1953 Municipal Way, Alabaster, provide notice to the owner(s) of the 
property, and publish notices of the hearing in the Shelby County Reporter as required by law.   
 

Page 112

Item #12.



 

3.  The City Council also authorizes Mayor Scott Brakefield to execute all documentation 
necessary to complete this transaction and City Clerk, Mark Frey, to attest and file required 
documentation. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 23rd DAY OF OCTOBER 2023. 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF ALABASTER 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________________ 
J. Mark Frey, City Clerk   Sophie Martin, Council President 
 
APPROVED: 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Brakefield, Mayor 

Page 113

Item #12.



 

STAFF REPORT  

City of Alabaster 

1953 Municipal Way 

Alabaster, AL  35007 

 

Submitted By: Thomas Lamb  

Council Meeting Date: September 11th 2023  

Agenda Item Description: Weed abatement 
recommendation and resolution 

 

Agenda Item Requestor: Thomas Lamb  

Summary/Background: Weed abatement resolution 
and recommendation for : 

205 Meadowlark Dr 

220 Jasmine Dr. was previously on the list, however - 
220 Jasmine has been cut as of 0900 on 9/11/2023 and  
It can be removed from the council agenda on 
9/11/2023. 

 

 

 

Financial Impact: 

 

 

Recommended  
Council Actions: 

 

Attachments:  

Next Steps/Schedule:  

Page 114

Item #12.



 

Page 115

Item #12.



  

Fire Department 
Public Safety Division 

Smoke Alarms Save Lives! 
1953 Municipal Way, Suite 102  •   Alabaster  •  Alabama 35007 

Phone 205-664-6823  •  Fax 205-664-6841  •  tlamb@alabasterfire.org 

Timothy J. Love 
Fire Chief 

 

Thomas J. Lamb 
Fire Marshal 

 

Scott Brakefield 
Mayor 

 

Brian Binzer 
City Administrator 

 

 

President Martin,  

 

On September 5th , 2023 Code Enforcement determined the property located at 205 

Meadowlark Dr, PIN 23 5 22 0 001 045.000 to be in violation of the City’s weed 

ordinance.  According to tax records the property is owned by Elizabeth R, James G and 

Hanna B Zanthos at 637 Carpenter Way Auburn, AL 36830.  

 

Code Enforcement has given a ten-day courtesy notice to the owner and/or 

responsible person and, as of this date, the nuisance has not been abated.  

 

The Fire Marshal hereby requests that the City Council, as the governing body of the 

City, (1) declare the weeds a nuisance, (2) set a meeting, no less than 45 days from 

today’s date to hear evidence and determine whether the violations shall be abated by 

the City, (3) give notice of the hearing to the owner/responsible person by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, mailed no less than 30 days prior to the date of the 

hearing, (4) give notice of the hearing by publication in the Shelby County Reporter 

published once a week for two consecutive weeks. The first notice shall be published at 

least 14 days prior to the date of the scheduled hearing. 

 

Done this the 5th day of September, 2023. 

 

 
_______________________________ 

Thomas J. Lamb, Fire Marshal 

Page 116

Item #12.


	Top
	Item #A.	08-28-2023 Minutes - Regular City Council Meeting
	08-28-2023 Minutes - Regular City Council Meeting

	Item #B.	09-07-2023 Minutes - Work Session City Council
	09-07-2023 Minutes - Work Session City Council

	Item #C.	Constitution Week Proclamation 2023
	Proclamation Constitution Week 2023

	Item #1.	*Resolution 091123 Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 1046 Independence Ct
	Resolution 091123 Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 1046 Independence Ct

	Item #2.	*Resolution 091123-A Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 98 Hickory Street
	Resolution 091123-A Assessing Weed Abatement Cost for 98 Hickory
	98 Hickory St - Weed Abatement 08-28-2023
	Abatement Cost Report 98
	Staff report

	Item #3.	Resolution 091123-B Adopt FY24 Budget
	Resolution 091123-B Adopt FY24  Budget
	Budget Highlights

	Item #4.	Resolution 091123-C Awarding Bid for Waste Water Pumps for the Environmental Services Department
	Resolution 091123-C Awarding Bid for Waste Water Pumps for the Environmental Services Department
	Staff Report - Pumps 2023 Bid - Fred Hawkins
	sewer pump sign in
	sewer pump bid 962023

	Item #5.	Resolution 091123-D Authorizing Agreement for Soft-Pak Route Management Application through Ingram Equipment Company
	Resolution 091123-D Authorizing Agreement for SoftPak Route Management Application through Ingram Equipment Company
	City of Alabaster Soft-Pak Agreement 050423 (002)

	Item #6.	Resolution 091123-E Authorizing Agreement for 3rd Eye Connected Collections Hardware and Monitoring through Ingram Equipment Company
	Resolution 091123-E Authorizing Agreement for 3rd Eye Connected Collections Hardware and Monitoring through Ingram Equipment Company

	Item #7.	Resolution 091123-F  Setting Alabaster City Council Regularly Scheduled Meetings Beginning in November 2023
	Resolution 091123-F  Setting Alabaster City Council Regularly Scheduled Meetings Beginning in November 2023

	Item #8.	*Resolution 091123-G Authorizing Incentive Agreement with PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC - Michaels
	Resolution 091123-G Authorizing An Economic Development Agreement with PC Sweet Home Bama, LLC
	Michaels Incentive Agreement v4.1 - 22 Aug 2023

	Item #9.	Resolution 091123-H Recinding Resolution 071323-A and Authorizing Change Order for Resolution 071323 to Include Allowance for Purchase and Installation of Turf
	Resolution 091123-H Rescinding Resolution 071323-A and Authorizing Change Order for Resolution 071323 to Include Allowance for Purchase and Installation of Turf
	Veterans Park Renovations - Change Order No. 1 BARGE 09-11-2023
	Resolution 071323 Awarding Bid for Veterans Park Renovation 2023 Project signed
	Resolution 071323-A Authorizing Purchase of Turf Materials from Field Turf USA Inc signed

	Item #10.	Resolution 091123-I ALDOT Right-of-Way Acquisition Agreement on SR-119 from CR-12 - Phase 2
	Resolution 091123-I Right of Way Acquisition Agreement on SR-119 from CR-12 - Phase 2
	ALDOT Project  STPBH-0119( ) Right of Way Acquisiion Agreement

	Item #11.	Resolution 091123-J ALDOT Utility and Construction Agreement for SR-119 from CR-12 - Phase 2
	Resolution 091123-J Utility and Construction Agreement on SR-119 from CR-12 - Phase 2
	ALDOT STPBH-0119( ) Utility and Construction Agreement

	Item #12.	**Resolution 102323 Affirming Recommendation of Fire Marshal to Abate Weeds at One Property
	Resolution 102323 Affirming Recommendation of Fire Marshal to Abate Weeds at One Property v2
	Staff report (2)
	Weed Abatement Recommendation 205

	Bottom

